
City of Rome 
Bid #040-19 

Bill Printing and Mailing Services 
 

Addendum IV – Questions and Answers 
 
 

1. Who is the City’s current print and mail vendor? Or is this job currently performed in-
house? 

 
It is our policy not to share any current vendor information in order to ensure 
competitive pricing from all vendors.  
 

2. If there is a current vendor, please provide current pricing or pricing that won the 
previous contract. 

 
It is our policy not to share any current vendor information in order to ensure 
competitive pricing from all vendors.  
 

3. Could you provide electronic copies of the current statements? 
 
This information will be posted as an addendum 
 

4. Is there a pricing sheet showing the requested itemized pricing or do we need to include 
our own itemized proposal?  

 
Provide your own please. 
 

5. Is there any interest in providing electronic statements to your customers?  
 
This process will be provided by our ERP software 
 

6. How much did you pay for postage in your latest mailing? How many envelopes did that 
include?  

 
It is our policy not to share any current vendor information in order to ensure 
competitive pricing from all vendors. Will not apply to this request as we currently 
only outsource utility billing. 
 

7. Which area presents the largest cost concern: printing or postage? 
 
Both equally. We just need best price possible. 
 

8. Is there color print on the bills?   
 
No 
 

9. Is there printing on the back of the bills?  
 
Yes 
 



10. What are the specifications of the envelopes - is the #10 a single or double window? 
Does the #9 have a window? Is there color on the envelopes? 

 
No color on envelopes. We will provide current samples, but are open to new 
suggestions. 
 

11. Can we furnish 3 references located within the US? We do not currently have 3 
references located within the State of Georgia? Would this disqualify us?  

 
Yes, and it will not disqualify you. 
 

12. Can you please share the last award tabulation?  
 
It is our policy that we do not release current vendor information in order to 
ensure current competitive pricing from all vendors 

 
13. Could you please provide the current contract prices?  

 
It is our policy that we do not release current vendor information in order to 
ensure current competitive pricing from all vendors 

 
14. Would it be acceptable for mailing to be submitted into USPS at the Milwaukee WI 

BMU?  
 
Yes 

15. Typically a Cost Proposal would be per Record Count per piece or per 1000 pieces for 
most services required in this RFP.  
Would you please clarify the following sentence:  “The cost proposal should include an 
itemized billing including an hourly billing rate schedule for all staff positions that are 
anticipated to be involved in the project.” – Would this be a request for a “Wage Report”? 
Or is this for added special programming above and beyond set-up?  

 
 We would need the cost for initial setup and then the cost of monthly processing 
at estimated numbers provided. 
 

16. Do all three mailings, Utility, Solid Waste and Landfill all mail at the same time? Or are 
these output at different times of the month?  
   
  No.  
Utility                    18,000 – weekly for a total of 18,000 monthly 
Solid Waste        200-300 – once a month on a 28 day cycle 
Landfill                  75-100 – once a month, usually first working day of the month 
 

17. Does the 8-1/2 x 11 paper include a Perforation for the consumer to tear off and submit 
back in the return envelope.  
   
  Yes 
 
 
 
 



18. Would these print black laser only on blank stock?  
 
On blank stock per programming by vendor. XML files will be sent for creation of 
bills. 
 

19. Would you like to have separate costs for both Black only or Color digital printing?  
   
  No 
 

20. Is the Outer #10 envelope a no print double window blank envelope?  
   
  Single window 
 

21. Is the Return #9 printed 1 color black on the front panel only, or will there be print on the 
back panel as well?  

 
 We have print on back now that was kindly provided by our current vendor. We 
will look at all submitted. 

 
22. Does the City of Rome Georgia currently hold a Permit Account with USPS? 

 
Yes, but submitting these bills with other jobs should be more cost effective with 
the vendor’s processing center. 
 

23. Will the City of Rome be able to furnish postage dollars prior to each mailing or hold a 
revolving monthly escrow account?  

 
Yes 
 

24. Are the bills to be printed in color or black/white? 
 
Black and White 
 
 

25. Are the bills printed on the front only or front and back of the sheet? 
 
The bills will be on the front and there will be static information printed on the 
back 
 

26. If the bills are printed on the back, is the back printed in color or black/white? 
 
Black and white 
 

27. Is the bill simplex or duplex? Static information on the back?  
 
Bill is on front. Backs are static on all three. 
 

28. Are there late or final notices?  If so, can you provide color and quantity specifications?  
 
No 
 



29. For the inserts, can you provide the size of the insert, frequency, quantity, 
simplex/duplex, how many colors? 

 
On request. Usually 2-3 times a year. 8 ½ x 11. If multiple pages, usually 
duplexed. Currently water & sewer are only ones that have sent any inserts, so it 
would be close to 18,000. If Solid Waste, 200 -300. If Landfill, 75 -100. 
 

30. Please provide sample data, file layout, and mapping documents.  
 
Samples will be uploaded by the end of this week of the bill formats and one XML 
file. Final mappings will be provided to awarded vendor. There will be a custom 
coding that will determine the message by the graph on the Water & Sewer. 
 

31. What does your current software core vendor charge for up-front costs for outsource bill 
printing?  

 
We don’t usually share current pricing and it will not apply to this RPF as print 
layout and processing has changed. 
 

32. What does your current software core vendor charge annually for outsource bill printing?  
 
We don’t usually share current pricing and it will not apply to this RPF as print 
layout and processing has changed. 
 

33. Does your software core vendor offer a discount on these fees for “preferred vendors”? 
 
No 
 

34. Is there a local vendor preference? 
 
No, all vendors will be evaluated equally. 
 

35. Are you interested in e-statements?  
 
No, we will process those out of our ERP software and these will be ignored in 
your printing by a field notation. 
 

36. What is the turn-around time requirement ( e.g.  ROME uploads billing  XML files on Day 
1 by XX PM/AM ) , vendor must  mail by Day X. 

 
Need to be mailed 1-2 days after files being sent.  Weekly files are usually sent 
by noon.  Solid Waste varies by time of day.  Landfill - usually by lunch. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



37. Are there any other additional  bills that are  usually sent (e.g. Second Notices, “Final 
Bills”, etc.)  If so, please provide samples  if they are different forms or design  

a. Avg. volume each time sent or if  1 X  per month, then total  per month (each bill 
type) 

b. Frequency 
c. Sample scanned image –please provide  

 
The City of Rome does not send additional bills. 
 

38. Pricing : please clarify what is in total cost requested ;  is this a gross/aggregate  total all 
bills for one month ? Per bill?  

 
One bill page #10 , #9 , NCOA, CASS etc.  X 18,000 =  

          X 200-300 
          X 75-100 
 

39. What necessitated going out to RFP for these services. Is this a mandated process or 
are you experiencing current vendor issues which prompted the RFB? 

 
There are no problems with our current vendor.  It is our policy that we put items 
out for bid periodically. 
 

40. Will all three of the form types use the same #10 and #9 envelopes?  
 
Yes 
 

41. What is the turn time needed from receipt of the data until the mailing date?  
 
Preferably  1 – 2 days. 
 

42. Is approval required prior to printing and mailing monthly? 
 
No, we just need confirmation on the totals from the print files each time. 
 

43. Are bills printed on the front and back?  What are the colors for each side? 
 
One-sided. Black. Each bill has a static backer. 
Insert could be duplexed if needed. 
 

44. Is variable data printed in color ink? 
 
No 
 

45. What color ink is used for the #10 envelope? 
 
Black 
 

46. Is the #9 envelope a regular or window? 
 
It will be a window for the return address to show.  Please give price option to 
print return address.  



 
 Additional Information 
 
Inserts would not be priced out at this time. These are priced out as needed depending on the 
job. Some would be one page, while others would be multiple pages. 
 
 
 
 


